

MINUTES OF THE TENDRING LOCAL HIGHWAYS PANEL THURSDAY 28th JANUARY 2021 AT 10AM MEETING HELD VIRTUALLY DUE TO THE ONGOING COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Chairman: CC Member: Cllr Erskine

Panel CC Members: Cllrs Goggin, Guglielmi, Honeywood and Platt.

Members: TDC Members: Cllrs Placey, Steady and Turner.

TDALC representative: Cllr Belgrove (Alresford Parish Council)

Officers: EH - Vicky Presland, Head of Design

EH - Thomas Eng, Assistant Highway Liaison Officer

Secretariat: TDC - Lizzie Ridout, Leadership Support Manager

Item		Owner
1.	Welcome & Introductions The Chairman welcomed those present to the meeting.	Chair
2.	Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Fairley and from ECC Officer Ian Henderson.	Chair
3.	Minutes of meeting held on 19 th November 2020 to be agreed as a correct record The minutes of the meeting were agreed as a correct record.	Chair
4.	 Matters arising from minutes of previous meeting A list of Vehicle Activated Signs had been circulated. Leas Road/Cherrytree Avenue, Clacton. Parked cars are regularly being damaged. Officers to visit site. A briefing paper on E-Scooters had been circulated. E-scooter initiative - Cllr Honeywood raised issues occurring along seafront of cyclists and e-scooters being used where not permitted. Review of signage is underway. Cllr Goggin requested that the budget summary on page 2 of the minutes be produced for each meeting. 	Chair
5.	Public questions There were none.	
6.	Report on funded schemes 2020/21 This report provided an update on the current position of all the schemes that the Tendring Local Highway Panel had recommended for inclusion in the 2020/21 programme.	Officers



Budget summary 2020/21	
Capital Budget	£395,000
Safer Roads Schemes	£29,000
Total Value of other Commissioned Schemes	£451,000
Remaining Budget to Allocate	£0
Schemes Funded by other Revenue Streams	£54,500

Members were reminded that the costs supplied were budget allocations only and there was the possibility that a final scheme cost could change dependant on issues that may arise especially during detailed design and construction.

 LTEN173001 Long Road, Lawford - Zebra crossing - programmed for February half term. Officers to advise Cllr Guglielmi when work is starting.

7. Report on Schemes awaiting Funding

Officers

The Schemes Awaiting Funding list identified all the scheme requests that had been received for the consideration of the Tendring District Local Highways Panel.

Members were asked to review those schemes and consider removing any they would not wish to consider for future funding.

The breakdown of scheme types available for future consideration was as follows:

Budget Summary		
Safer Roads	£0	
Traffic Management	£776,000	
Walking	£127,000	
Passenger Transport	£41,500	
Public Rights of Way	£16,500	
Cycling	£0	
Total	£961,000	

Costs supplied were estimates only and there was the possibility that a final scheme cost could change significantly dependant on issues that may arise during detailed design and construction.

 LTEN182004 Ravens Green, Little Bentley - Traffic management improvements - Officers to investigate further and discuss with Cllr Guglielmi.

Members agreed to remove the following **Traffic Management schemes**:

• LTEN182018 Heckfords Road, Great Bentley - No right turn.



- LTEN 182021 B1027 Flag Hill, St Osyth Signing improvements. (LTEN192024 was the replacement scheme)
- LTEN182041 The Drive, Harwich 20's Plenty
- LTEN182065 B1035 Heath Road, Tendring Speed reduction officers to discuss further with Cllr Guglielmi
- LTEN182066 B1035 Thorpe Road, Tendring Speed reduction officers to discuss further with Cllr Guglielmi
- LTEN192012 Cockaynes Lane, Alresford 20mph zone
- LTEN192013 B1027 St Osyth Road, Alresford Speed Reduction
- LTEN172016 The Street, Kirby-Le-Soken Traffic management improvements
- LTEN172007 Church Road j/w Well St, Spring Chase and Ladysmith Avenue, Brightlingsea - Traffic management improvements - removal requested by Brightlingsea Town Council.
- LTEN192024 Bradfield Parish HGV Restrictions
- LTEN162010 Valley Road, Clacton-on-Sea Junction modifications

The following actions were agreed:

- LTEN182063 Little Clacton Road, Great Holland Repeater signage Officers advised that there was the potential for the Rangers to
 undertake the work alongside an existing road closure. Officers to
 advise Cllr Platt when that happens.
- LTEN192021 Harwich Road, Great Bromley Speed limit reduction Cllr Guglielmi to share accident statistics with officers at a cabinet surgery.
- LTEN192023 B1027 Speed Limit Review Cllr Goggin thanked Vicky Presland and her team for the review of the scheme, and was happy with the results. A series of actions had been recommended and agreed by the Parish Councils, and would be forwarded to officers.
 Officers would then provide costs for Panel to consider. Cllr Belgrove thanked Cllr Goggin for his efforts with the review.
- Officers advised that the Speed Management Strategy was being reviewed, and would provide further information at the next meeting. Agenda item for next meeting.
- LTEN202003 Cox's Hill, Lawford Speed Reduction Officers to confirm the result from the surgery to Cllr Guglielmi. Cllr Guglielmi to undertake survey locally.
- LTEN202004 Thorrington Road, Great Bentley TMI and LTEN202005 Weeley Road, Great Bentley - TMI - The Parish Council has requested minimal visual effect on the village.
- LTEN202007 Brook Street, South Street, High Street, Manningtree 20mph Scheme to remain on list pending any update from officers.
- LTEN202013 Ravens Green, Little Bentley Exploring potential request for private road. Scheme to remain on list.



- LTEN202017 Leas Road, Clacton-on-Sea TMI to remain on list pending site visit by officers.
- LTEN162010 Valley Road, Clacton-on-Sea Junction modifications -Scheme removed due to costs. Officers to take to a Cabinet Member surgery. Panel to formally write to major projects programme for scheme to be considered.
- Cllr Erskine proposed to complete three 20's Plenty schemes per year.
 Cllr Platt seconded the proposal and members agreed. Officers to advise Members when schemes in their division would be going ahead.

It was suggested that Officers try to link schemes to areas where work was already being carried out. Officers also agreed to circulate information to members demonstrating effectiveness of 20's Plenty schemes. Members were reminded that the signs were advisory only, and that formal 20mph signs were also available as an alternative.

Cllr Placey to send details of new 20's Plenty schemes for officers to check inclusion.

• LTEN182041 The Drive, Harwich - 20's Plenty - to remain on list.

Casualty reduction update

Two sites for next year as part of cluster analysis.

- Thorrington road junction with Lufkins Lane in Brightlingsea division.
 Previous lining improvements have now faded slightly. Study of
 collisions that showed there was a pattern of southbound vehicles into
 Thorrington Road into the path of oncoming vehicles. Remove base
 growth on large oak tree on northeast corner of junction to maximise
 visibility. Costs will be known by March.
- Skelmersdale Road and Vista Road junction in Clacton East Division. Study of personal injury collisions indicated a pattern of three collisions involving southbound vehicles entering Skelmersdale Road from Vista Road into the path of oncoming vehicles. Lining work providing a hatch area to change the way the junction looks.

Members were also advised that the feasibility study for Frating crossroads had been completed and had been recommended to proceed to design at a cost of £10,500, with funding coming from the LHP budget next year.

Walking schemes

- LTEN183006 Colchester Road, Elmstead Crossing point Officers clarified the costs which were approximately £200,000, and would need a Cabinet Member Action prior to any design. Cllr Guglielmi to discuss further with officers. Scheme to remain on list.
- LTEN183001 London Road, Little Clacton Zebra crossing Officers confirmed that the design would be funded by S106 contributions. Cllr Belgrove to update Little Clacton Parish Council.



	 LTEN193003 Kirby Road, Walton-on-the-Naze - Crossing Point - to remain on list. LTEN193005 Frinton Road, Holland-on-Sea - to be removed from list. Officers advised that there was no update on the provision of bus shelters. 	
8.	Appendix 1 Officers to circulate papers after the meeting.	Officers
9.	Date of next meeting: Thursday 18 th March 2021 at 10am via MS Teams. The meeting closed at 11.31am.	All